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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  ...hearing on the proposed changes to enhance the performance of the California Lottery.  Anyone would like to stick around for that, we’re going to begin that hearing in just one moment. 
Okay.  Let’s go ahead and now call to order the Senate’s Committee on Governmental Organization informational hearing on hearing entitled, “A Review of the Proposed Changes to Enhance the Performance of the California Lottery”.  Of course, I’d like to thank the members that are here, and I’d like to thank our analyst and others who are presenting today.

Obviously, California passed in 1984 the Proposition 37 which created the California State Lottery.  The purpose of the California State Lottery is to provide supplemental funding for the benefit of public education without the imposition of increased taxes.  The Lottery Act provided at that point that net revenues from the California State Lottery shall not be used as substitute funds, but rather shall supplement the total amount of money allocated for public education.  
It’s been about 22 years since we began this process in October of 1985.  And through 1985 to 2007, the Lottery’s raised over $20 billion in supplemental funding for public education.  Lottery sales for the fiscal year, 2008/2009 are expected to bring in an additional $1.2 billion in supplemental funds to education, and no doubt everyone knows the formula by now for the Lottery Act, 50 percent return in prizes, 34 percent to public education, and about 16 percent for administrative expenses.

The Lottery act provided that the State Lottery should, in essence, provide the maximum amount of net revenues to supplement the total amount of money to public education in California.  And I can tell you from our vantage point there’s an inherent conflict between the mandate and the purpose of the law and the law itself.  The law states the lottery shall be initiated and operated as to produce the maximum amount of net revenue for public education, yet the law contains a number of restrictions that inhibit the ability of the California State Lottery to meet that state mandate in my view, making the lottery an underperforming asset. 
Finally, the lottery provides that none of the provisions may be changed except to further its purpose by two-thirds vote of both houses of the Legislature and approved by the Governor.  And that’s why we’re here today at this hearing.  Today we’re going to examine some proposed statutory changes that would remove a select number of restrictions in the Lottery Act.  These proposed changes are based on best practices from other lotteries around the country and implemented.  There’s an argument to be said we could bring in anywhere between $800 million and an additional billion dollars per year.  That’s an increase of 3.9 billion in new sales.  And the goal today is really to talk about how we maximize those types of revenues in the lottery and hopefully, the proposed changes we’re talking about today aren’t new ideas.  We’ve had a lot of hearings on the lottery in this committee, and we, at some point, need to have some sort of public airing on the types of changes that need to take place.  
We need to look at the lottery’s three-year business plan.  And we also need to prepare as the Governor has talked about, the licensing or the leasing of the lottery, if we are moving in that direction, it’s clear to us that there aren’t going, we aren’t going to be receiving the maximum amount for this lottery if, indeed, it’s an underperforming asset.  And we don’t have it prepared, if you will, for licensing or for revenue bonds or for whatever it means we’re going to be moving forward on.  
It seems to us that we have two bills in the process that I’ve introduced this year.  One would create a financial advisor to look into the leasing or licensing of the lottery.  There’s no doubt that the Legislature’s not equipped ourselves to make those types of decisions.  It makes a lot of sense to have a financial advisor look into all of the options when it comes to the lottery.  Indeed, we’re going to try to maximize its value.  But, at the same time, we need a bill that also talks about the underperforming assets problems.  By that, I mean looking at, if you will, the inherent problems with stoppages, if you will, with our current game that’s not allowing us to perform as other lotteries have throughout the nation. 
And so I do want to thank everyone for being here.  I’m looking forward to the hearing and trying to get a better understanding of the stakeholders’ positions in this.  I would like to also identify any changes that people have on two bills that we’ve introduced before we hear the bills.  So, I’m very anxious to hear if anybody has any comments on SB 1679 and SB 440.  And of course, if you’re listening out on the Cal Channel, both of those bills can be accessed at our Senate website, senateca.gov. (sic)  And the California Lottery’s business plan, the three-year improvements can be viewed on the internet also at callottery.com, or calottery.com.  And with that, members, you have any comments or questions?  
Okay.  Let’s go ahead and begin, then.  And I want to thank the LAO office for being here.   I want to begin with you and you can just give us your take on this.
MR. JASON DICKERSON:  Jason Dickerson with the Analyst’s office.  I’m the gambling policy analyst at the LAO.  We’ve given you a hand out.  I’ll try to cover the highlights, very briefly, which Senator Florez, actually, covered quite a few of them.  Skipping ahead in the handout to page two, Senator Florez provided a brief overview of the history of the Lottery.  Distributions to education from the Lottery have been volatile.  Over the last 25 years there have been several periods of pronounced weakness in Lottery sales including in recent years.

One thing to note is that Mega Millions, the multi-state game, appears to have been largely unsuccessful in increasing overall sales.  In Mega Millions first full fiscal year 2005/06, it generated $454 million of sales, and during that year, the overall lottery game sales of the lottery increased by a net amount of only $78 million.  So this suggests that Mega Millions largely just reduced revenues of other games of the Lottery, rather than increasing the Lottery’s overall take.
On to page three of the handout, it is important to bear in mind that the lottery is a minor funding source for California schools.  There is a perception in the public surveys have suggested that it in fact is a major one.  But, Lottery provides only about 1.5 percent of K-12 revenues.  The Lottery will never be a major funding source for schools, even under the most optimistic scenarios for how much sales can be improved.

Page four of the handout I think goes to essentially the main reason that the state is now having this conversation.  Senator Florez, members of this committee, the Governor and others, including the Lottery Commission have pointed out the Lottery sales here in California lag those in other states on a per capita basis.  It’s interesting to note that states west of the Mississippi have always had per capita lottery sales lower than the nation as a whole.  But, California’s per capita sales fall even below that, a bench mark.
And so these trends suggest that sales improvement quite well might be possible for the Lottery.  And that’s a good thing for the Legislature and policy makers to be looking at.  As Senator Florez, mentioned, Lottery does have a new three-year business plan which has several components which seem to be fairly promising.  But, there are limitations under the current law and the flexibility the Lottery Commission has to adjust its operations to improve its performance.

There have been several proposals, turning to page five, with the Lottery and I’ll start with the proposal that the administration and the Governor made last year proposing leasing the Lottery to a private entity over several decade period.  This plan, like most others, would require significant loosening of restrictions on Lottery operations including the loosening of the existing prize payout percentage that’s in the Lottery Act.  Several states with higher per capita sales pay out a higher percentage of lottery revenues in prizes.  And some state that have increased the percentage of the revenues that go out as prizes have found that this increases lottery profits, the amount that can be sent to education.  So right now the basic law is that 34 percent or more of Lottery revenues go to education.  And so it might seem somewhat counterintuitive that in certain scenarios, if the state pays a smaller percentage to education, it may actually increase the overall pot.

The reason this is so is because this would increase the percentage of the lottery revenues going to prizes.  And in economic terms, the price of a lottery ticket for the average person is basically, takes into account the average prize that they get.  Therefore, if you pay more prizes, the average price of a lottery ticket goes down.  This encourages more sales and it builds the overall pot of revenues so that there might be going to education at the end.

The Administration particularly last fall in the context of the health care debate discussed an estimate from some of its financial advisors that a lottery lease may be able to generate a $37 billion up front payment for the state.  That is highly unlikely and unrealistic.  The most that a lottery transaction could generate on an upfront basis is probably one half that amount, or less.  And it’s important to note that the Governor’s plan would require that some or all lottery profits not be allocated to education.  For example, some lottery profits probably would have to be available for the private concessionaire to encourage them to get involved in the business.  The impact on education funding therefore, could result in new budgetary pressures for the General Fund.

On to page six, looking at some other proposals—it’s been suggested by the Treasurer’s Office, among others, that there actually could be an opportunity for an upfront payment to the state without leasing or selling the lottery to the private sector.  Several states issue lottery revenue bonds and assuming that it would be legally authorized here in California, the State of California could do that, as well.  Lottery revenue bonds could generate an upfront payment that could be used for various public purposes, budget relief, capital projects, health care reform, among others.  But, like the Governor’s plan, Lottery revenue bonds would require that some lottery profits not go to education.  And this could result in new pressures for the General Fund, as well.

And then finally, the continued state operation of the lottery, but loosening of restrictions, as Senator Florez was pointing out, these proposals would keep the lottery management, at least for the time being, under state control.  But, the enhanced flexibility for the Lottery Commission could give it more flexibility to establish prize payout percentage, broader flexibility on the types of games offered, and there could be perhaps a broad array of other changes as well that could allow the Lottery Commission to increase profits distributed to education.  

On to pages seven and eight with our office’s comments—we think that the Governor, Senator Florez, other members of the Legislature and the Lottery Commission have appropriately raised the issue of whether the Lottery is an asset.  So we do recommend that the Legislature explore a variety of methods to improve the performance of the Lottery, and this could include changes in prize payout percentages.  We do not typically endorse particular bills outside of the budget process, and we don’t in this case, either.  But, we do think that this is the right, a good area of inquiry for the Legislature to be making.  
Second, we think that the Legislature should consider carefully the long term budgetary ramifications of any lottery lease or bond.  As I mentioned, a lottery lease or a bond could bring new pressures to the General Fund, and therefore, if the Legislature wishes to pursue such a transaction, it should carefully consider those pressures and avoid increasing the state’s out year budgetary problems which are already significant.

The third comment is the leasing of Lottery would take time.  This would be a very complicated and unprecedented transaction in this country.  And therefore, if the Legislature wishes to pursue that kind of proposal, it should adopt a realistic timetable for receipt of any upfront proceeds.  Such a transaction could take several years to complete, in our opinion.

There are broad legal and policy issues for the Legislature in this area as this committee knows very well.  Increasing lottery sales would involve a new expansion of legalized gambling in the state, in addition to the already significant expansion of gambling that the Legislature’s authorized in recent years.  This could result in increase social costs, particularly related to pathological and problem gambling.
The increase in the Lottery’s sales and improvement of the Lottery’s performance would necessarily bring with it more competition for other legalized gambling interests in the state including tribes, card rooms, horse racing establishments, and charitable bingo.  This could result in declines of state and local revenues paid by those interests, and it is possible that certain changes in the Lottery could violate the state’s casino compacts.  And that would be something the Legislature should carefully consider.
And then finally, as the chairman mentioned, the Lottery was approved by a voter initiative, and therefore, voter approval may be required for certain changes.  So, I’d be happy to answer any questions that you have.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Very good report, and very concise.  Members, have any questions?  I have a few for you.  Yes, okay.

SENATOR ABEL MALDONADO:  You mentioned about _____, you said maybe half of what we were talking about.  What do you think it’s worth to the state if you were going to sell it?

MR. DICKERSON:  I don’t have a precise answer for that, other than it appears to be much less than $37 billion dollars.

SENATOR MALDONADO:  I understand that.  Twenty billion dollars?

MR. DICKERSON:  It might not, it might be below $20 billion.  The simplest way to look at the value of an asset like the Lottery would be to take the current profits and to essentially calculate a present value of that.  And I think that the rough calculations would be that that might be somewhere in the 10 billion to $15 billion range.  One question an outside investor would look at among many others, would be if they were to purchase the Lottery, just how much access would they have to those profits?  And they would also have to establish whether or not they think the California Lottery is going to be an asset that improves over time or declines over time.  So, complication, establishing of values, there’s never been a sale like this.  So it’s not like there’s a comparable value of the type you might see on a home appraisal.  We just don’t know and we wouldn’t know until it was put up for bids.  
SENATOR MALDONADO:  When you see a sale, would it be just like any normal transaction that anybody else would do?  You have an asset.  You sell it to a private individual.  He pays you a check.  It’s theirs.  You’re done.

MR. DICKERSON:  That would be one model.  However, it seemingly if the Legislature wished to pursue that transaction, it probably would wish to maintain some control and oversight to make sure, for example, that the private vendor did not adopt anti-consumer practices or—

SENATOR MALDONADO:  So, really, not selling the whole thing?

MR. DICKERSON:  Well, I think that it is possible to sell the whole thing and to give a private vendor, really total access to those profits.  One question for the Legislature is what strings would you want to put in that sale?  What level of control would you want to keep with the state?  The more control you keep with the state—

SENATOR MALDONADO:  The less the value of the Lottery is.  

MR. DICKERSON:  That’s most likely true.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  When you say control, you mean there are two types of control.  I mean, the regulatory control that we have over card clubs, race tracks, and others.  So, in other words, it’s the playing field in which these folks compete, correct?  If I could ask, answer and I’d like to get your opinion on this as we have studied at length the Governor’s proposal on lease with licensing or even the revenue bond concept.  Leaving the revenue bond concept out for a moment, I think it’s fair to say that the value of today’s, you said in your arguments, it’s not $37 billion, and I would probably agree with you.  I mean, that’s kind of a Lehman Brothers, you know, big picture, 60 years out—
MR. DICKERSON:  It seems to assume that Lottery sales essentially double.  That’s a very optimistic assumption.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, I think it’s fair to say that the value of the Lottery, this is why we think that the two bills, you need a Lottery efficiency improvement bill before you can even get to the question of whether or not leasing or licensing out the lottery is even in the cards, because I think, as Senator Maldonado mentioned, the value of the Lottery today, if you look at it, 94 cents of every dollar today generated by a slot machine in California goes back to, you know, players 86 percent.  And horse racing goes back to players 50 cents of every dollar goes back to players in the Lottery.  
So if we were to improve this efficiency, so in other words, if we could make the payout to players not 50 cents, but let’s take it up to horse racing, 86 cents of every dollar.  I think you get more people playing, as you mentioned.  The inverse is how do you get more people more interested in the different types of payouts.  And the only way you get from 50 cents to 86 cents, or 50 cents to 94 cents, is to have efficiency improvements.  It’s to really look at what’s preventing our lottery from reaching those types of, if you will, maximums.  
So my view is that the value of the Lottery, I think what the investment banks see, what the investors see, the reason that they’re coming to and looking at  California’s lottery is they see a lot of inefficiency and they see a lot of value from 50 cents to 94 cents, or from 50 cents to 86 cents.  They see that, those additional cents being billions of dollars that they could, in essence, as private vendors, improve on.

And so, you know, I think what we’re attempting to do as you mentioned is to argue the inverse, which is, if you looked at the 34 percent that goes to education, and if you were to say loosen that up and allowed for some flexibility in that, I know it sounds troubling, it sounds very troubling to me, and number one, I mean, we never want to mess with the base for education, period.  But, if there could be a guaranteed base at its highest point for education, let’s say 1.2 billion, and let’s say this year it’s 1.2 billion, but, yet we were to increase the flexibility at that point, even though we would guarantee 1.2 billion that the Lottery Commission could,  in essence, use this 34 percent number to improve the games’ efficiencies thereby increasing sales, I think then there’s an argument one might make that education, if there was some sort of, I’m an investment banker, kicker, some sort of maximize, some sort of, if you will, additional amount for education at the end of the day beyond the base, if we were to allow for the flexibility, those are the kind of things I think that I’m interested in working on.  I mean, what do you think about a concept like that at the end of the day in terms of the 34 percent that you mentioned earlier and your argument about kind of the inverse thinking on that?  You know, how do you loosen align and yet still have education fully funded?

MR. DICKERSON:  There is some evidence from other states that giving a Lottery administrator like the Lottery Commission this sort of flexibility given the opportunity to increase the overall pot of revenues.  I’m not sure that the percent going to prizes would ever be as high as 80 percent.  It might considerably less.  And it’s interesting in a state as big and diverse in California with as wide a portfolio of games as our lottery currently has, the Lottery Commission might discover that the optimal prize payout percentage for one game is different from another.  It’s conceivable it could be different in one part of the state than in another.  But, there is some evidence from other states that giving the Lottery Commission this flexibility could maximize the supplemental funding to education and if you did give the Lottery Commission that flexibility, I think it would be important to hold them accountable.  In essence, you’d be giving them more authority and therefore, more responsibility and it would be something that the Legislature would want to keep a careful eye on every year to look at how they were using that authority. 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Right.  Maybe the other question I have in terms of the, as you mentioned in your presentation, California’s per capita spending on Mega Millions, for example.  Are you accounting that the capitalization issue and other games because of Mega Millions, in other words, more people play Mega Millions, I assume, than our normal lottery game, that it didn’t supplant, but I see the billboards.  There’s two, right?  There’s two games there and I don’t know, I’m pretty simplistic.  I say one game that has 400, $200 million payout and I see on the other side of the billboard, payout it’s, or jackpot of, you know, 60 million, 40 million, 13 million.  It’s kind of, if I’m going to be buying a ticket, I’m kinda clear what ticket I might be buying, right?  It’s the $200 million versus the $40 million.  So is that the reason that we’ve seen a lot of cannibalization or a decrease in other types of games?  It’s been Scratchers, have they been in other sorts of . . .
MR. DICKERSON:  Well, I’m note sure that we have the data to sort of trace to the dollar, where it is.  But, I think that we do know that in the year the Mega Millions premiered with $454 million take, the Lottery’s overall performance did not increase by that amount, as I recall.

Cannibalization of some existing game’s revenues was anticipated when Mega Millions was introduced.  That’s a fair, simple proposition.  But, I think for example, the Governor’s California performance reviews assume that that cannibalization would be about 50 percent.  And just a pretty simple look at the data, Lottery might have more data.  Seems to suggest that the cannibalization might have been greater than that. 

I think that you see if you look at the track record over the last 25 years, ups and downs in the Lottery’s performance, and especially given the wide array other entertainment and gambling opportunities that consumers have in California today, it sort of seems like the Lottery Commission has pretty much used as much as it can, its existing authority to try to maximize sales.  Mega Millions, although the process that led to the authorization of that was controversial was a logical next step in the Lottery’s evolution.  And really, if you look at the existing Lottery statute with its limitations, it would be difficult for the Lottery Commission to do a lot more than it already has with the authority that its been given.  To do more, it probably would need a loosening of some of its restrictions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me, if I could, ask just a couple more questions on problem gambling.  I think you mentioned earlier—yes, oh, I’m sorry.  Yes, go ahead. 

SENATOR MALDONADO:  Since we’re on that topic before you move forward, Mr. Chairman, who would be potential buyers for the Lottery?  Do you have any idea or . . .

MR. DICKERSON:  Well, I think that because there has never been a sale, we don’t know for sure.  Apparently investment banks—
SENATOR MALDONADO:  We know it’s not going to be the Farm Bureau.  I mean—

MR. DICKERSON:  Investment banks on Wall Street apparently do have some investors that are potentially willing to be, I think, parts of consortiums that would go into purchase or lease a lottery.  Part of those consortiums might be companies both in the U.S. and internationally that already have a relationship either with Lottery or even with casino gaming in some instances.  That might be a part of it, but basically, in the world wide capital markets, the lottery market in the U.S. would just be one type of asset class that those markets would be looking into.  So it could be, it quite well be a group of investors coming together to capitalize a new company specifically for the purpose of managing California Lottery.  That is a possibility.  

SENATOR LELAND YEE:  Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.  Mr. Chair, before you go into the problem gambling, let me try to kind of understand this particular issue first.  You mentioned that the Lottery is an underperforming asset.  And I think there’s two definitions for me, or two ways of looking at that particular concept.  First concept is one that I would subscribe to and that is clearly within the Lottery that we have right now as it is defined right now as the parameters are established, that the returns and the dollars that we are getting is not as efficient or as much as we would like to then dump back into the Lottery itself, so that it can sustain itself.  And so there’s a lot of inefficiency.  

And I am all for trying to figure out how we can make it a little bit more efficient so that there are more dollars that goes into the Lottery and so that we can, in fact, make it a lot, a better product and more productive product.

Another way of looking at it is that we have this asset called Lottery.  And we somehow have some kind of a market or a mathematical model that there are a lot of other individuals that could be playing the Lottery and they’re not playing it, and therefore, we’ve got to find ways or we can find ways to expand that market share.  And that’s one that I’m not ready to go there yet.  And the reason for that is that there is a problem, there is an issue of who plays the Lottery, what are we doing about individuals who can probably ill afford to throw away more discretionary dollars, and then finally, those individuals who on a daily basis, go in there, play 20, $40 of lottery tickets and what are we doing to try to say to that person, “Maybe you shouldn’t be doing that.  Maybe that the dollars should be going to pay for bread and milk for your family.  Maybe you should keep that money, save it for a rainy day.”  It’s that second sort of scenario that I have a tremendous problem.  And I think it is a policy issue.  It’s not about just simply getting the maximum out of it, because there are consequences to that particular effort of expanding the reach of a lottery.  And it’s, want to share that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Gloria Negrete McCloud.

SENATOR GLORIA NEGRETE McCLOUD:  I have the same question.  Do you have any demographics of who exactly buys the lottery?  Is it poor people who think that they’re going to get it big at some point and all of their woes will be thereby, you know, made wonderful?
MR. DICKERSON:  I think when the Lottery Commission testifies, they can provide you more detail.  But, in general, the data that the Lottery Commission has collected over the years reports that the distribution of players in the lottery basically mirrors the California economy and society in terms of income, in terms of any number of demographics.  So it’s a fairly representative sample.  

One of the things that’s interesting, if that’s true, is that if you have a lower income Californian who purchases, you know, 10 lottery tickets in a month, that is a higher percentage of that person’s income than a higher income Californian that purchases the same number of lottery tickets per month.  And so in that respect, one of the things that it would be interesting to have more data on from the Lottery Commission would be the extent to which lower income players, basically the percentage of their income that they are spending on the lottery, but the data that they have produced suggests that the number of players pretty much mirrors the California population.  But, the impacts on lower income Californians may be significant, as you mentioned.

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  Yeah, I think my problem is that I mirror what Senator Yee said, that people are looking for that golden cherry.  It’s somewhere out there and that they’re wasting more of their income into something that’s not going to be tangible at any point.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me as a question as we follow up that on problem gambling for a moment, then in other words, as an issue as senator Yee mentioned, we have a bill this year that’s moving through this committee on problem gambling.  The Governor vetoed last bill by our Assemblymember Torrico and others who were concerned with that.  You, do the entire industry, horse racing pay, do they deal with problem gambling?  In other words, put money into the issue Senator Yee mentioned.  In other words, people, they pay into problem gambling funds.
MR. DICKERSON:  I don’t have that data in front of me, so I will have to get back to your staff on that one.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I think they do and I know card clubs definitely do.  

MR. DICKERSON:  Card clubs definitely do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, the Lottery pays zero.  It pays like a hundred thousand if you look at the amount that it’s, it generates how much per year?  So three billion?

MR. DICKERSON:  Around three billion total sales.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So three billion, they’re paying a hundred thousand, and yet this may be, as Senator Yee mentioned, you know, kind of the entry way into this, and so one of the things we’re doing, as Senator Yee and Senator Negrete McCloud is that we’ve actually in this bill put a million dollars toward problem gambling every year.  So in other words, the Lottery needs to pay more even as we start to figure out how to work this.  So we have to increase sales, but at the same time, recognize that there’s a problem out there.  Because, right now, it’s paying a hundred thousand.  
So I think at some point in time the Lottery needs to step up to the plate and at the same time, figure out how do we pay a much larger amount every year to problem gambling issue that is probably non-existent.  We’ve had the problem gambling folks in here.  We’ve had a hearing.  I wasn’t really excited about the progress of the program.  Think the director’s left or is still there.  Not sure.  I think I read it.  And so we’re trying to put some more money into this, but I think it’s an ongoing discussion.  Both senators mentioned, but we obviously need to continue.

Let me ask one more question, if I could, about your view of, or the Lottery revenue bond concept as opposed to the leasing or the licensing of it.  I mean, what does it give us?  Do we know what it might look like?  Is a certain percentage it need to go to retire the debt?  I mean, have you looked into that at all and . . .

MR. DICKERSON:  Three states that I’m aware of issue lottery revenue bonds: Oregon, West Virginia, I’m forgetting one at the moment.  Florida.  I think that one of the advantages of a lottery revenue bond would be that bond investors, particularly in the municipal bond market, already have indicated their comfort with this type of security.  There are already securities out there.  And I think that that would be an advantage, also, perhaps has the advantage of something that assuming that it could be legally authorized by the Legislature and/or voters, could be executed fairly quickly.  It doesn’t necessarily involve the all of the time and effort that leasing or selling the lottery would.  
So I think that that’s important to keep in mind.  Other states have already done lottery revenue bonds.  It’s not as foreign or alien a concept.  The state, if it issued those bonds would not necessarily, in fact probably would be well advised not to leverage the lottery to its max.  If the state wanted to have an up front payment of 500 million or a billion or $2 billion, that’s something that could potentially be done under a lottery revenue bond structure.  And that type of upfront payment could be used for any number of public purposes, capital projects, budget relief, or a variety.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Jason, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Good report.  Okay.  Let’s go to panel two.  We have Tom Shaheen, executive director, and I want to thank him for coming all the way from North Carolina, in terms of the North Carolina education lottery.  And Joan Borucki, our director of the California State Lottery.  Thank you both for joining us.  Very much appreciate it.  And why don’t we start with North Carolina.  And you can give us your comments and then I have a few questions. 
MR. TOM SHAHEEN:  Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the committee.  My name’s Tom Shaheen.  I’m the executive director of the North Carolina Educational Lottery.  Appreciate the opportunity to come out here and speak with you all today.  North Carolina is a relatively new lottery.   We are just about two years old at the end of this month.  However, I have been in the lottery business for 20 years.  I started out in Florida.  I spent four and a half years there.  I went to Texas for a year for the start up.  I spent seven years in Georgia and then five and a half years in New Mexico, prior to going to North Carolina.  

So what I was here today to speak to you on is the impact of raising the prize payouts, both from a North Carolina standpoint, which is relatively recent and from a standpoint of the other lotteries that I have served in.  I have a brief handout in front of you all, I believe.  It talks a little bit about what’s happened with prize payouts in North Carolina.  Similar to California, we have a lot of restrictions in our lottery act.  They’re not exactly the same as those in California, but we do have some restrictions with regard to advertising and with regard to prize payouts.  

We were, I believe, the last lottery in the nation so far, and the first one to start with lotteries on every border.  So our players were very attuned to lottery.  Our lottery act said we could pay out a minimum of 50 percent in prizes, however, the way the lottery act read, we had to return 35 percent to education.  So, paying out much more than 50 percent was going to be very difficult.  Immediately the impact was felt in North Carolina due to the fact that all these players are within two hours of another state that has lotteries.  Georgia’s paying out 70 percent.  South Carolina’s paying out 68 percent on average on their instant games.  Virginia, 64, Tennessee and newer lotteries paying out about 63 percent.  And here we come with 50 percent.  Okay. 

Our sales were great for about two weeks.  And then everybody started going back to the borders.  Of course, the media did a wonderful job of making sure that the public knew that our payouts were much, much less than the border states.  So people began to wonder why did I leave New Mexico?  And it was very interesting.  
So we had to go to our Legislature and discuss with them what the problems were.  They had higher expectations of revenues, just as you do.  And they didn’t understand why we weren’t getting them.  I explained it to them on two or three different occasions.  They took a look at the facts and the figures and they decided to go ahead and give us that flexibility.

And what they did was they changed the language in the lottery act where it was basically saying it was mandatory that we give 35 percent to education, seven percent to our retailers, eight percent to operate on, and 50 percent in prizes.  They just changed it to make these guidelines for us to follow, okay, in order to meet the legislative budget.  In essence, that gave us the flexibility to have a lower return in percentage to education with the idea that we’re going to return more dollars overall. 
So what you have in front of you is a brief presentation.  I’ll begin with page one.  I want to make it clear, and this is not just from a North Carolina experience, but this is from my experience in all the other lottery states.  It’s not just raising the prize payout that’s going to make the difference, it’s a whole marketing effort.  The lottery is going to have to change the way they market the product.  Again, you’re a business trying to market a consumer product as a state agency.  Very, very difficult thing to do.  So, before we raise prize payouts, we retrained all of our telephone people who talk to retailers who basically just taking orders over the phone.  And we taught them how to be sales people.  We brought our two major vendors in who had staff that was experienced in this.  And they changed them from order takers to more of a selling type personnel, analyzing the retailers inventory, not just having get on the phone, have the retailers, give me two of these, one of these, and hang up.  They actually had the tools in our gaming system to analyze that and start telling retailers what games are doing, sell successfully in their stores and which don’t.

We also used, utilized our sales staff to go out and presell this to the retailers.  Like in North Carolina like in every other state, one, retailers buy tickets, two, and they have total influence over the players that buy them.  So if you don’t have your retailers on board, they, you’re sales aren’t going to go up.  So our sales staff went out and presold and told them that we were going to begin issuing games with higher prize payouts.  Of course, these games didn’t come out until about November.  The law was changed in July, but the development time and the distribution time for the instant games takes 30-60, 90 days.  
So as we were developing the games, we had the sales staff telling retailers that our prize payouts were going to go up.  Consequently, they were sharing that with the players.  We have some very strong advertising restrictions in North Carolina, so it was a fine line in how we advertised this.  Basically, our advertising guideline in the lottery act says we cannot entice people to buy lottery tickets.  Well, it’s a hard way to try to sell a consumer product if you can’t entice anybody.

So we had to determine what was enticing and what was facts.  And we did an advertising campaign that you will see on page two with a new tag line, “More prizes, more fun.”  This could be viewed as enticing by some.  Our position on it was it was facts.  We were putting out more prizes.  More fun was debatable, but once it happened, it became a fact that it was more fun.  We did not receive any challenges on this advertising.  I think the enticing was focused more at showing people in big mansions, on big yachts, taking cruises.  That was more of the enticing type advertising that they were engaging in.  
We also had to pick up all the old inventory as we had games out there paying 50 and 52 percent.  We had to clean that out, get that off the street, so that we had room for these new games.  Between November and January of this year, we were basically able to replace all the existing games that were on the street with higher prize payout games.  If you will go past page two, page three is more of the point of sale type stuff that we did, but you can look at that at your leisure.  I think the key one that you’re going to be looking at is page three, the first graph.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. SHAHEEN:  And it says, “increase in payout sales trend”.  Now, we are a much smaller state than California.  We’re a population of just about nine million which is approximately, I guess, about a quarter of your population here.  So these numbers aren’t as big as your numbers would be, but as you can see in the beginning of fiscal year 2007 which began in July, our sales were hovering around the eight, nine, ten million mark.  You can see that line just pretty much pretty steady, up and down.  The points where you see the increases are where we introduced new games.  We automatically do shipments to all retailers when we introduced new games.  Consequently, there is a spike in the number of tickets that they will activate to sell so, those are the weeks where we introduce new games which ran about every three weeks.  

And as you can see as we get into, oh, about November of 2007, those lines start to go up slightly.  And that’s when we had the first higher price payout games out on the street.  And it starts to stay above 10 million now as opposed to getting down into the sevens and eights.  And then you can see in January where the big spike is.  We introduced on January 8th, a $10 instant ticket that paid out 73 percent.  Normally our $10 games were paying out about 60 percent.  And as you can see, sales went up tremendously.  Now, what happened that week is our sales doubled, and 50 percent of our sales, for instance, tickets that we, was that $10 game.  And then 50 percent were all the other games that we had out there.  Now, as time goes on through March, we are starting to see that $10 game now becoming about 40 percent of the sales for instant tickets, and the other games are moving up and our sales are still increasing.  So that’s the strategy you want to introduce some higher prize point games that are going to pull all your games up.  And as you can see, and this is the week—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How did you strategically pick what game was going to be, the one game or two that was going to have a different payout?

MR. SHAHEEN:  One thing, Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, one thing about this business is you try to learn from what others do.  And we introduced a game that was very similar to what was introduced in Massachusetts and Georgia in a $10 game that produced a sizable amount of sales.  This particular week that we’re in right now, our sales are going to be $20 million by the end of this week.  Normally we’re averaging 8.7 million a week.
You’re probably questioning how I know what sales are going to be by the end of this week, when it’s only Monday.  If you look at the next chart, okay, it shows you our instant sales. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And before we go to that chart, I guess the chart before that you went from 10 million to 20 in a straight line, and it kind of then continued to hover.  So that was a huge jump.  And was it, bottom line, was it different payouts for various products then that allowed that and continued it?

MR. SHAHEEN:  Yes.  Those are the, this is the result of the different payout games right now.  The next graph shows the blue line which is our fiscal year ’08 sales.  And the red line is our ’07.  And as you can see in the beginning in fiscal year ’08 our sales were starting to decline.  Now it’s because of the continued low payout games starting to wear off with players.  And as you can see right there in November and December, those lines cross and now you can see where 2008 is heading.

The next page, and this is going to be a little difficult to explain, is activations.  And what that means is our retailers activate a pack of tickets, but they don’t pay for them for three weeks after that.  Okay.  That’s how I can predict what our sales are going to be at the end of this week, because three weeks ago I know that over $20 million tickets were activated in the retail stores, which are going to be settled and collected by us on this week.  So where the graph ends, the blue line ends right there at the top it just kind of just ends.  If you can go to the next page, this shows the activations.  And that line continues to go up here, because where you see 70 million for the month, and then the line starts to go up this way, those are the activations from beyond the point on the previous graph which is real time sales.  So what this tells us is for the next three weeks our sales are still going up even more.  

 This all has to be managed very carefully.  Right now, we’re in North Carolina, we’re in the beginning stages of it.  This is only three and a half months, but we haven’t seen our sales increase by an average of 94 percent a week.  Now the challenge is to manage the operating budget, so as we can bring in more money for education.  We’ll have a better handle on that come June 30th once we start to see a leveling of the other games start to come up and pay out more.  
This is not a new idea.  I was in Georgia for seven years from startup of 1993 ‘til the year 2000.  We increased the prize payouts at that time from about 52 percent to 58 percent.  We saw sales at that time go from eight million a week to 22 million a week.  Since 2000, I know that Georgia’s increased their prize payouts even more and their sales have more than doubled.  I think they’ve had weeks for 45, 50, and $60 million in their instant ticket sales.  And for the past few years, their return to education has increased.

There’s no guarantee.  Okay.  But, the one thing that everybody must keep in mind—people play to win.  That’s why they’re playing.  And it was clear in North Carolina if they weren’t going to win, they weren’t going to play.  Maybe not many people play because the money’s going to education.  I will tell you in 20 years I’ve found the most people don’t mind losing if they know that the money’s going to education.  So they may not be a whole lot of people playing because that’s where it’s going, but when they lose, they’ll say, “Well, you know what?  So what?  The money’s going to education.”  And I’ve heard that in every state that I’ve been in.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Senator _____.
SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  Okay.  You said you only have nine million people in your state?

MR. SHAHEEN:  Yes, ma’am.

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  And you have 20 million per week.  That means that every woman, child, man is playing at least two bucks?

MR. SHAHEEN:  Yes.  That’s, but that’s the total population.  Okay.  Only about 75 percent are of legal age.  You have to be 18 years of age to play.  But, most lotteries don’t calculate it that way.  You just calculate it on the whole population.  And that’s just the instant tickets, okay. 

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  But, still, people in your state, each person or the legal age that can play which I imagine, what is—

MR. SHAHEEN:  Eighteen.

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  No, no, no, I mean what is the legal, what’s the population in that, that is the legal age?

MR. SHAHEEN:  It would be 75 percent of the nine million which would roughly be, what, seven million.

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  Seven million people, so seven million people are playing $3 a shot, then, each person.

MR. SHAHEEN:  About that, yes, ma’am.

SENATOR NEGRETE McCLOUD:  Okay, so the wealthier people can afford to spend three bucks.  But, they’re probably not playing, so then you get the poor people that are playing six bucks a shot and for each family, that’s probably, then, starting to eat a little bit into budgets.  

MR. SHAHEEN:  Mr. Chairman, Senator, I don’t know that you can calculate it that way.  Our local newspaper, the Raleigh News and Observer who has been against the lottery from day one ran a story as late as last week.  They took all of the sales information that we had from start off, analyzed it by county, and drew the conclusion that it wasn’t all the poor people playing lottery.  Now, do poor people play lottery?  Absolutely.  And as the gentleman before me had mentioned, it, if they spend $3, it certainly is a higher percentage of their income than it is from somebody who’s making $75,000 a year.
But, in North Carolina the playing of lottery mirrors the demographics.  I can give you problem gambling statistics if you like.  It’s up to you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I think it’s an issue, obviously, it’s the problem gambling is an issue, obviously, with the committee in trying to figure, figure that out.  And it’s hard to decide how people spend their discretionary dollars.  Some people might buy lottery tickets.  Some people might buy milk, and some people might buy beer.  So if we're going to legislate to exact how people should buy, I think we’re going to be here a very long time.  So, it’s simply a question of how, not in essence, what kind of games to, in essence, to pick.  

Let me ask you, if I could, a question about the payout and education.  Because, at the end of the day, at least for me, I think, it really is, I think you hit it right on the head, people are going to play a game that they’re most likely to lose as Senator Negrete McCloud said, and I think she’s correct.  Some people said the “L” stands for “loser”, maybe, not lottery.  But, nonetheless people pay and play.  And, but if it is going to education, I think people feel less worried about that.  

And so, at the end, how would we measure from California your success with a different payout structure for education?  Because I think at the end, when this is all said and done, the question would be, given the flexibility you had, did education do better?  Did education receive more?  Did education produce because of the change in your game in North Carolina?  If education isn’t going to, I’ll tell you right now, if education isn’t going to be helped in any scenario in any bill dealing with the lottery in terms of additional dollars going to it, it’s probably a non-starter here in the Legislature.  And I will include my bill in that in that realm.  So there has to be some thought that education has to produce and be the recipient of more dollars.  
The question around the edges is what kind of flexibility do we provide our own Lottery Commission, our own lottery director in the types of games it should produce as you have so we can measure on some point whether education did better.  And better means better than its base, largest base share, and better based on the amount of per capita kids entering to our system that did allow us to say per capita kids are doing better.  Does it mean lock in at 1.2 million and kids who are 30 percent more kids 10 years from now that we’re doing better by simply being locked in at 1.2 million.  It means that we’re doing better on a per capita basis per kids in our school districts.
How would we be able to measure you progress?  Or when do you think you’ll measure your progress in terms of education?

MR. SHAHEEN:  Well, I can answer that two ways.  First of all, this is new for us in North Carolina, so we are under the microscope right now to measure how much we’re going to return to education.  We won’t have that answer in North Carolina for a few months to come.  However, if you do analysis of the other lotteries that have followed this same formula and strategy, I think that you will find that there has been an increase of funding to education.  I can certainly say that that’s happened in Georgia, I believe.  Every year they’ve increased their return to education and New Mexico was the same thing.  Of course, much, much smaller state, but same strategy was used in New Mexico and the educational dollars were increased.  
So North Carolina, it’s still out there.  I can give you one example of what the difference could look like, if I may.  We did a $10 game in North Carolina previous to this one we just launched.  And we ordered two million tickets, which is $20 million in revenue.  At a 35 percent return, that’s $7 million.  That game has taken about five and a half months to sell, okay.  This new game now is on track to sell out in the same five and a half month period.  We printed 16 million tickets which is $160 million in revenue, okay, gross revenue.

If we return, and we don’t have the final figures, but let’s say we return 15 percent on that 160 million, that game will return over $24 million for education in the same five month period that the other game at $10 at a lower price payout and a lower quantity will return $7 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.  Let’s move on, yes, of course.  Senator Yee.

SENATOR YEE:  Given the performance with the North Carolina lottery and your tremendous growth, you’re going now bill a base of funding for education that I would imagine they are going to end up growing dependent on.  And then the question is, what is the projection in the next several years?  Are you going to be able to sustain this high level of sales over the next several years?  And then maybe because of cost of living increases and other things along those line, you know, education is going to need more dollars in order to sustain the same level of services or programs.  And is your projection it will continue to just go up to meet the demands that you’ve established for education?  
MR. SHAHEEN:  Mr. Chairman, Senator, again, our model in North Carolina is in hope will follow what’s happened in other states, and yes, their revenues, their gross revenues and their net return to their beneficiaries has increased.  Our projection in North Carolina is that we hope we will be able to follow that same pattern.  To your point, yes, it becomes money that, you know, is depended upon.  And it’s up to the staff of the lottery and myself to make sure that, you know, we manage it in an appropriate manner that raises that revenue.

But, economic downturns, you never know which way they’re going to go.  I’ve seen an economic downturn have a negative effect on a lottery, and I’ve also seen it have a positive effect on a lottery.  So, you know, I can’t be, in all honesty, foresee into the future.  I can only base on the experience in years that I’ve worked that it has increased.  But, again, like anything else, there might be a point where it levels off.
SENATOR YEE:  One last question.  The model that you have, then, does it look at a static population that’s going to be buying it, or are you looking at an increasing population to play the lottery to sustain this kind of growth?

MR. SHAHEEN:  Mr. Chairman, Senator, what we are looking at is increasing the playership.  New players.  We believe we have a strong core base of players.  We do not believe that we are reaching as many North Carolinians as we should.  It is one of the biggest growing states right now in the country, so we anticipate there will be more population.  They’re all coming from the northeast, which they come from lottery states.  So, our goal, our goal is to bring in new players.  That’s why the higher price point games, the five and $10 games.  We did a $20 raffle.  But, the $10 games are, earlier returns are bringing in newer players.  Not to say that the existing ones aren’t playing.  I’m not trying to mislead you that they’re not playing.  But, we are bringing in new players.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.  Okay, let’s turn to our California Lottery.  Ms. Borucki, thanks for joining us.  Very much appreciate it.  And I’d like to thank you for coming all the way down from North Carolina.  I’m sorry that the weather is not that great in California today.  So I apologize for that.   
Let’s, if I could, let’s begin with, if we could, the amount or your thought on the maximum amount of net revenues to public education, the language.  Do you believe that we are giving the maximum amount of money to education under the Lottery Act at this point?
MS. JOAN BORUCKI:  Under the Lottery Act at this point there’s probably, we could probably squeeze another small amount out with some of the new initiatives that we identified in the 2007 business plan, but it certainly will be a small amount, maybe to go from 1.2 to 1.4 billion a year through different paradigm shifts on the jackpots and some of the other things that we’ve talked about in the marketing and product development plan.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And as you probably know, we, under the legislation we initiated, that most of that, a good portion of that is based on the business plan and information that we’ve learned from various hearings that we’ve had.  And I guess my question would be, do we have an idea of what the estimate would be in terms of additional dollars per year based on this legislation that we mentioned?  How much more, if we had loosened up some of these restrictions, we might be able to produce, versus what you just mentioned a moment ago, which was a very small amount?

MS. BORUCKI:  We would estimate and that’s primarily based on the experiences of my colleague here, Tom Shaheen, and some of those other states.  But, we would estimate that at a minimum, you could at least double the sales and significantly increase the net revenue to education by at least $800 million annually.  The caution that I have received from other lottery directors, and we wouldn’t want to make sure we implement here in California’s should we do something like this, is to make sure that you take it slow, that you don’t jump from a 50 percent payout to a 70 percent payout.  You need to take those kind of increases slowly, those changes slowly on an annual basis in order to sustain the growth with Senator Yee was getting at. 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there’s a build up process in this.  

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And why is it, why is the freedom to determine price payout’s important from the Lottery’s perspective?

MS. BORUCKI:  It is one of many different restrictions that would be nice not to deal with.  From our perspective, it’s important, because it gives us more flexibility in order to generate the larger sales and to generate the sales in those areas that are going to contribute the most to maximizing the net revenue.
One of the mantras we have is you can increase sales, but it’s more important to increase the net revenue going to education.  So having that as a tool gives you the capability to offer something to the consumers that you can’t today. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you heard me ask the North Carolina lottery person that, how do you pick the right games to increase, for example, if there’s flexibility to determine price payouts, are we talking about scratchers, are we talking, is this a percentage, is this going to do in terms of sales increases?  What’s your thought process in terms of the types of games that we might look at, for example?  And are we the only state that doesn’t allow for the, that can’t offer fixed prizes?
MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We’re the only state that does that?

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And explain why that’s important, if you could.

MS. BORUCKI:   Okay.  There’s, first let me explain about the, what games you would select for those.  Based on the experiences of the other lotteries who have gone through this transition, typically your higher prize payouts are generally in the area of your instant tickets.  There’s tremendous amount of market research, customer focus groups, everything else that comes to bear in selecting those.  And what becomes more important for your draw games or your Super Lotto Plus and your Mega Millions is the capability to offer the fixed prizes at the lower tiered levels, rather than a player never knowing what it is that they’re going to win in those categories, they now know that they, every time they play, if they have five of five, they’re going to get 250,000 instead of sometimes 70,000, sometimes 500,000.  So it’s something for the consumer.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And is it a thought that the other states, then, have used that more effectively than they have the ability to do that more creatively to drive sales?

MS. BORUCKI:  They’ve been able to offer it to their players and as a result, they’ve seen a much better response from their players in terms of sales than we have.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I think you heard me mention it earlier, but today, I think I mentioned 50 cents, but the lottery’s averaging about 54 percent price payout.  Is that where we’re at?

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   Okay.  And on average, that means 54 cents goes back to every player.  Is that the way it plays?

MS. BORUCKI:  That’s right.  Fifty-four cents goes back out in prizes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In prizes, right?  And I gave some comparisons in horse racing, for example, and to the, some of the card clubs, slot machines, these types of things, what is, what’s your view of the payout?

MS. BORUCKI:  Our payout is rather low compared to any studies that you see on the casino industry or even comparable to other lotteries.  For instance, the average across the ten best lotteries and best producing lotteries in the nation, they average about a 60 percent payout over all their games, or 70 percent for their instant tickets.  And we certainly aren’t there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the best performing lotteries are about 72 cents, percent price payouts.  Is that correct?

MS. BORUCKI:  Somewhere between 70 cents to 72 cents.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And in that realm of 70 cents to 72 cents, is it fair to say that on a return basis, per capita basis of kids, that they actually return more to education than our lottery given our payout?

MS. BORUCKI:  I will tell you, senator, of the 10 best performing, or  most populous states in the nation, we’re dead last on per capita return to the beneficiary.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I can put it in layman’s terms for me then that basically says that our lottery is dead last in what it returns to California school kids, the very basis for (passering?) the lottery on a per capita basis?
MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  Okay.  And the other schools that are, the other states that are at a higher payout rate have a higher per capita.

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s one of the reasons that we’re delving into this this year very carefully, very gingerly, and we want to make sure we’re working with our very concerned advocates from our schools who are worried about making sure this is very delicately and precisely handled so that there’s some base, there’s up side.  So in other words, there’s no down side.  So that’s why I’m asking some of these questions so I can just begin to make the case for this.  

In terms of some of the math, for example, I’ve read that every additional dollar invested in prizes, the lottery realizes about $7 in additional sales.  Is that the way we’re supposed to look at it?

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And $2 returned to education, therefore?

MS. BORUCKI:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How, explain that just a bit more, so I can understand that.

MS. BORUCKI:  What happens is the, when you average it out overall the—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you thought after the confirmation hearing all these questions would go away, but here we are, questioning you more and more and more now as we move.  So I’m just trying to understand and make a base case just how your understanding what we might be, if you will, from a perspective of the lottery realizing more dollars and kind of trickles to other portions of education?

MS. BORUCKI:  Basically, what it is is, you know, when you do the analysis and so for every dollar that gets purchased, ticket gets purchased or that we invest into the lottery, we’re going to get $7 in sales.  And of that $7, 35, 34 percent, whatever, $2 is going to go to education.  It’s just real simple math.  What happens is when you start leveraging some of these other best practices from the other states, you can make a tremendous increase in the amount that starts the go back to your beneficiary because you’ve been able to increase the amount of sales.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And maybe we can just talk a little bit about the SB 1679 which puts into play some best practices within lotteries.  We tried to take your business plan, look at other lotteries throughout the nation and try to, in essence, come up with best practices to improve the various types of dollars going to education.  Can you take us through some of these best practices?  Would that be possible?

MS. BORUCKI:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Please.

MS. BORUCKI:  I, let’s say, let’s start, well, we’ve already talked extensively about the prize payouts, one of the big issues there and having the flexibility to be able to increase those and basically, returning money to the consumer.  The other issue that we brought up is the, in the business plan, was the inability of the California Lottery to offer fixed prizes for our lower tier, lotto type games, the daily games, we have one monitor game in the state.  And having fixed prizes would also allow us to offer some new lotto type games, perhaps at lower levels to meet the consumers’ demand for more winners at lower prize levels.  

One of the other issues that we raised were the technology and limitations that were placed on the lottery by the Legislature back in 1995.  If those restrictions were lifted, then we could offer subscription play which we offer today, but they have to go into a retailer, but we could offer subscription play on the internet and other ways that consumers are shopping today and just mirror that for the lottery, as well.  

There are also game theme restrictions that were part of the original Lottery Act that would be lifted with SB 1679 as we mentioned in the business plan, as well.  Right now we can’t introduce a scratcher ticket that has a roulette theme or a draw poker theme.  It’s not a new lottery game, but it’s just a scratcher ticket with that on its face, which are very popular tickets in other states. 
In addition, we have ticket dispenser restrictions in state law.  It was put there as a result of a court case which was then followed up with another court case that basically said that wasn’t necessary, but it’s still in state law.  And what that does is basically, something as simple as my ability to perhaps sell advertising and coupons on my tickets which would generate more revenue, I can’t do that because that would give something of value out of the ticket dispensing machine which then under state law, this particular section, would make it sound like it’s a slot machine.  Or dispense change.  I can’t tell you how many times I’ve seen in the grocery store go up to that machine, only have a 20.  They only want to purchase $5 worth, but they can’t get change from those machines, either.  So, it’s a very simple little things like that.  
There’s also within the, we talked in the business plan also about the fact that the state lottery is prohibited from retaining earnings at the end of the fiscal year.  And a lot of times in businesses, it’s that capability to retain earnings that allows you to reinvest in the business and pay for new equipment and other things.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the technology, any other lottery that you know about in the country that’s locked into 1984 technology, because I know we are.  So, you know, is there, if you look at other lotteries throughout the nation, I mean, they’re allowed to upgrade their technology in a way that isn’t 1984 technology?  Is that correct?

MS. BORUCKI:  There are no other states that are under that restriction.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what are we missing in that, then?  We’re missing efficiencies, we're missing . . .

MS. BORUCKI:  We’re missing efficiencies and we’re missing a tool to reach customers and to reach new customers who don’t want to have to go into a convenience store or who want to do their subscription play.  A lot of the office pools would be a great advantage to them, as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you the reason that has a good quarter of the room sitting here, and that is video lottery terminals and what you believe.  Are we talking about video lottery terminals in terms of your business plan, or in terms of what, you know, I know in our legislation we’re really considering to be very clear to, you know, have at least a quarter of the room not worry and not have to show up at these hearings, that we just say it’s not ever going to be video lottery terminals.  Are we locking ourselves out of something at that point?  Do you feel that’s something we should be looking at?  How clear can we be on some of these issues?  Where are we going on it?
MS. BORUCKI:  I did not include video lottery terminals in the business plan or when we did the future look at the lottery.  Having seen what happens in some of the other lotteries across the country who do have video lottery terminals, had those authorized by their Legislature.  It was not a good thing for the rest of the lottery business within that area.  They may have accumulated a large amount of sales with those video, but the rest of the business tended to trend downward.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Right, because it’s another—

MS. BORUCKI:  Competition.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Competition.  Okay.  Would you have any thoughts that if we were, at least in our bill to very explicitly say that it would not include video lottery terminals, would that inhibit, in your view, the current lottery’s movement or the Commission’s movement?

MS. BORUCKI:  I don’t think that that would have a negative impact on the Lottery at this point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  And lastly, in terms of the, if our measure was to be passed, I mean, any thought in ramp up?  In other words, if we took the, you know, the technology restrictions, the fixed price games, the dispensing machines, the theme restrictions, these types of things, what would be the ramp up so we could actually see if these were changed and signed if there was some sort of agreement among the parties?  What do you think the ramp up would be in order to get the maximum benefit from these types of changes?

MS. BORUCKI:  You probably, just because of switching out old games and making changes and all that, full benefit probably wouldn’t be felt for 18 to 36 months.  So at the end of 36 months, the full benefit of all those changes should be across the board and all the games of the Lottery.  Of course, you have, you know, one little game after six months, and then you’d start to switch everything out.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  I think those are all the questions I have.  Members have any questions?  Okay.  Thank you very much.

Okay.  Let’s go on, if we could, to our lottery stake holder panel.  Katie Carroll, director, Public Finance Division, State Treasurer’s office; Estelle, California Teacher’s Association; and Fred, California Coalition Against Gambling Expansion.  Thank you for joining us.  Appreciate it.  And thanks for giving us preprocessed for any bills move through.  We wanted to kind of see the landscape just a bit to understand some of the pitfalls, some of the issues, and to try to understand how we formulate this.  And we appreciate your participation.  
Let’s, if we could, start with the State Treasurer’s Office, if we could.  Just about the concept, and it’s a very simple thought process.  Two bills, one bill has to do with the efficiencies and the improvements of the Lottery.  The other bill has to do with the potential thought process of either licensing, leasing, or looking at, as the Governor has pointed out, the current lottery.  And we have an FA type of structure in the bill.  I mean, what does, what can the State Treasurer’s Office tell us about participation in that, your thoughts on that, an FA looking at this?  It’s not that I don’t trust the Department of Finance to hold this, and I love Fred Klaess.  He’s a great guy, but I mean, at some point in time, how do we, what’s your view on trying to get outside help and to really view this thing from a pragmatic point of view?

MS. KATIE CARROLL:  Well, obviously to the extent that you would be looking at improving Lottery performance, that wouldn’t be our area of expertise.  But, if we’re looking at how to capitalize on or bring up front proceeds to the state from the Lottery, we do feel that we can add expertise to that process.  

Having said that, one of the things that we think would be very important in looking at and retaining an FA for this process would be independence in the sense that there is some fear that if we allowed the same FA that gave us advice on how to securitize the Lottery, to also participate in helping us bid out or somehow put that securitization together, it could result in a lack of independence, because one process generates, frankly, a lot more proceeds to the capital markets than the other process does.  
In general, from what we’ve seen, the up front sale type of process, the capital markets, the FAs and underwriters that help in that process do make a lot more money on the transaction than just a typical municipal bond financing.  That’s why we would be looking very carefully at that independent process. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so from a licensing or a leasing point of view from Governor’s perspective talking about this and looking at it, I mean, I think what we were trying to do is to move the ball a bit forward on, rather than talk about it, we’d just like to have someone look at this from a financial point of view to answer the question, is this for California?  I mean, does this make sense for us, as opposed to maybe doing lease revenue types of bonds, lottery bonds?

Other states done Lottery bonds that you’ve heard of?

MS. CARROLL:  Certainly, as Jason indicated earlier, there are three states that have done lottery revenue bonds.  And those programs are quite mature.  I think one of the programs has been around at least 10 years.  The market accepts lottery bonds, they’re used to it.  In fact, one of the rating agencies gives AAA ratings on lottery bonds, so that’s certainly a process that the market’s familiar with.  Sort of as opposed to, as Jason had also indicated, as opposed to the leasing concept which is being discussed in other states, but to date, has not yet been done.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Right.  And in terms of the lottery revenue bonds, is that some sort of a fixed amount of dollars to pay back the bonds?  So in other words, you get a maximum amount of proceeds from revenue bonds based on what the debt service is.  So I mean, is there some sort of hybrid between this so we don’t maxi—I mean, are we in a debt crunch from the treasurer’s point of view?  Is this something we can take a certain percentage of these bonds, 30 percent, 40 percent, 50 percent to pay down debt service and still allow it to operate?  Is there some maximum number?
MS. CARROLL:  Yes, but assuming no improvements to the performance of the Lottery.  Of course, it depends on how much we want to push up front.  Any debt service is going to take away from revenues that are currently available to the Lottery.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in different structures the states have offered, is there a certain percentage that has allowed them to continue their contribution to education, the running of the Lottery, and yet produce some efficiencies?

MS. CARROLL:  Well, there are, in revenue, inherent in revenue bond structures there are certain revenues that the states retain.  There’s what are called coverage tests.  And basically the states are able to leverage in a manner that makes the bond holders comfortable, that they’re going to get paid.  In other words, there’s, you know, some percentage over and above the revenues that would typically be earned and that must be shown before the bonds can be issued.  So, for instance, yeah, if debt service were, say, 400 million a year, maybe you’d need to show 800 million a year or more in lottery revenues.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So there’s some thought that increased efficiencies still work in their favor or better.

MS. CARROLL:  Of course, of course.  Yeah, the more revenue you earn, the more bonds you could issue.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there any thought process on how much money you would be able to generate given our current lottery in terms of revenue bonds?

MS. CARROLL:  Yeah, we did look at this and sort of base case that we used was, I’d say maybe somewhat aggressive.  And the reason we looked at that base case in that manner was that we’re sort of trying to give some form of apples to apples comparison to the original long-term leasing plan which was about 40 years from our understanding.  
So we looked at the possibility of leasing the revenue or issuing the revenue bonds that we 40 years in duration.  Doing that and basically leveraging to the max which is, was pointed out earlier.  We’re not saying that that’s the advisable thing to do or even in the current capital markets that that could actually be done.  But if you were able to do that, we think you could generate about 13 billion in up front prep, proceeds based on today’s lottery.  Now that doesn’t take into consideration any improvements in the future.  And you couldn’t bond today against those improvements.  So as you indicated before, you would need to show those improvements before you could bond against them.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I gotcha.  But just give our current lottery, we’re somewhere between—

MS. CARROLL:  You know, I’d say if we did it the way other states have done it so that we basically weren’t sort of pushing the envelope to 40 years, they’ve used a bond term that’s more like 20-25 years.  And looking at their coverage ratios which, frankly, wouldn’t be pushing quite as much as we looked at here, I’d say, you know, probably closer to seven billion upfront.  And that’s still, you know, leveraging the maximum amount and you would still have some state revenues left over to use for education, but would be varied depending on how much was issued.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is there any way from, financially, from your vantage point to lock in, for example, education at an amount, say 1.3 billion or something of that sort, and still allow us to issue revenue bonds?  Is this still a workable formula?  In other words, do the bond holders say, “Well, we’re not, you know, we’re supposed to get paid first, but yet we’re locking a portion of this.”
MS. CARROLL:  Yeah, you really can’t do that in revenue bonds at this point unless you were able to just vastly improve the performance of the Lottery, but basically, we would need to pledge all of the revenues.  Having said that, if all the revenues weren’t necessary for debt service, if the Lottery did improve, and we did meet revenue expectations, even if we met current revenue expectations, there would be some amount left over, but not nearly the 1.2 billion that we’re generating now, you know.  You’re talking maybe 400 million per year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great, thank you very much.  Let’s hear from CTA.  Thank you. 

MS. ESTELLE  LEMIEUX:  Hi, I’m Estelle Lemieux with the California Teachers Association.  And I just want to give you a bit of a context to begin with.  In 1984 the California Teachers Association never supported the Lottery, so that you know that.  Unfortunately, it was sold to the public as a panacea to funding public education.  And we still know this today, because when we do our focus groups, some of us who are observers wait and bet on each, with each other, how long is it going to be before someone brings up the issue of, “Well I thought the Lottery was going to take care of public school funding.”  And up ‘til two months ago, this was still the case.  

So it’s not just anecdotal.  It is when we do our own research on funding of education in California.  And that for us is a big problem.  You’ve heard from Jason from the LAO that the Lottery is about one and a half percent of the total funding in California.  This is a very small portion that goes towards educating our children.  We don’t want it taken away, particularly now, facing all the cuts and layoffs that schools are up against.  
So this is the issue for us, the overall issue.  Because while reviewing and doing an analysis of SB 1679, and we did a legal analysis, as well, we have been told that this will have to go before the voters of California to make these changes as the bill is currently written.  And for us, that is a double-edged sword.  As you well can imagine knowing what the public believes already, and there is not enough funding in California in per pupil spending.  Just in January the education weekly shows us ranking at 46th in the nation in per pupil spending.  
So we do have a long ways to go in just getting to the national average.  And going to the public for another vote to make changes to the Lottery Act at this point in time to increase just a very small amount for us is not helpful, would not be helpful in our view, to public education.  
We do have some other concerns with SB 1679, the way it’s currently written.  I understand things are fluid.  The replaced the minimum payment of $1.2 billion instead of a 34 percent take that we currently have in the law.  For us, we do not, and giving the Lottery Commission the ability to change the percentage, we don’t read this to require than any more than 1.2 billion would be provided to schools, you see.  So while some of you may argue that, well, the revenues go up with the Lottery, it doesn’t necessarily follow that the commission will want to give us more than what is stated in currently in the bill.  Which, by the way, according to the Lottery website, the current take for schools last year was 1.28 billion and not 1.2 billion.  So right out of the gate we looked at losing, you know, 800 million.

The other issue is having to give up, of course, the unclaimed prizes and having to split them up for prize dollars with schools is another loss for us.  But, really out overriding issue and our constitutional attorneys who have done cases on Prop. 98 have told us that this does, would have, in their opinion, would have to go before the voters.  So that’s our big overriding issue and then the double-edged sword of selling the  public, well, we need to go to the voters for this, because this will benefit schools again, when in fact, it does, but on such a limited basis that really would not be helpful for us in the long run.  

So, that’s pretty much where California Teachers Association stands ____.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you.

MR. FRED JONES:  Other than that, CTA’s in strong support.  (LAUGHTER)  Thank you, Mr. Chair, for this opportunity.  It shows your courage, or maybe my impotence to invite me to a hearing when you probably saw my comments and reaction to your bill already in the press.  But, I appreciate your courage.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s why they’re called bills.  They’re not laws, yet.  So, they’re to comment and talk about, so, appreciate it.

MR. JONES:  First, I mean, we have a 24 year history with the Lottery.  And I would characterize it as a fairly dubious, checkered past.  If you see the trends by the Lottery’s own numbers and by Jason’s statistics, it’s been a fairly consistent sell.  But, the way they’re maintained, and by consistent, I mean they haven’t really kept going up nor down.  They’ve had some fluctuations, but the trends have just been pretty flat line.  But, they’ve maintained that flat line by introducing all sorts of new games and themes and gimmicks and advertising.  And so just to maintain the status quo, they’ve had to do a lot of, I would characterize this, pushing the legal envelope, having been involved in some litigation of some of their recent efforts, which have proven to be non-performing, cannibalizing.
On the underperformance issue, I just disagree about the underperformance.  West of the Mississippi we’re pretty close to the average per capita.  And it’s appropriate to look at west Mississippi, because of the spread out population of states west of the Mississippi.  But, in addition to that, we have a large population, expensive media markets, and in California, almost ubiquitous competition with card clubs, horse racing and the ever expanding tribal casino sector.  

So for all of those reasons, I would say that it’s not about internal performance enhancements within the Lottery, it’s pressures outside of the Lottery’s control that I think keeps us from expanding per capita.  Then the question is, is it meritorious from a policy managed point to expand per capita sales.  Obviously, our organization does not think that’s the case.  But, if we were to improve sales, would that help education?  Estelle’s already pointed to the provision in your bill right now, and I know it’s fluid and I appreciate that, that says only the guarantee is not less than 1.2, not that they can go above that, it’s just they can’t go below that.  So if we improve sales, will that necessarily go to the advantage of education?  We know it’s going to be pitched as such, especially if this has to go to a statewide ballot.  But, right now, the wording of your bill does not provide any guarantees of that.  
But, also as Estelle’s already so eloquently stated, the expectation of voters about the lottery solving education problems, I think that’s just enhanced.  And you know, we have another bond, another round of bond with AB 100, Mullin bill, that’s sitting in this house that the establishment is wondering, do we even put it on the ballot in November, because of all the economic woes, will it pass?  And the last thing in the world we want in supporting education is a bond to fail, an education bond.  So this could start splitting some of that momentum which is already having problems.  

And even if we improve sales, would that necessarily help the current exploited Californians that play the Lottery?  We don’t think so.  And if we can improve sales would that possibly negate tribal casino compacts, vis-à-vis, the exclusivity clauses of those compacts as it related to slot machines?  And you know, I really respect the current director of the Lottery.  We’ve had some interesting leaders, leadership there, but the current one is, she’s very up front and candid and I appreciate that.  However, the coin dispensing issue that was brought up—I mean, there’s a very big legal issue about whether a machine can dispense coins.   I mean, I think everybody in this room understands the implications of that potentiality.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  You mean, like in laundromats?

MR. JONES:  Yeah.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s a big deal?

MR. JONES:  VLT.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s bring the laundromats in.

MR. JONES:  I’m just talking about the VLTs.  I mean, when you start talking about—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, VLTs are different than coin dispensing machines where VLTs aren’t being talked about being used.  I mean, it’s just, let’s put it in context.

MR. JONES:  Yeah, but I’m going to get to some of the specific provisions, but I am concerned about the language and restrictions of VLTs.  

So, I guess from policy vantage point, is how many new games, themes, and other things do we need to continue to push the envelope to continue to maintain current sales?  And I think this is just one of another effort to just maintain the status quo, and I don’t think that serves education or the state or those that are being exploited by the Lottery.

Turning to your bills, obviously CAGE strongly supports SB 440.  The only concern I have with SB 440 is that SB 1679 is not single joined to it.  In other words, why should they be kept separate?  I don’t think 1769 (sic) should pass and get signed into law without assurances that SB 440’s preclusions are tied to it.  I don’t think it should be double joined.  I believe there’s simple policy merits on its own to pass SB 440.  This is the ban on internet and international lotteries.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. JONES:  On 1769, Estelle has pointed to some of the education related ones, so I’m going to quickly gloss over those.  But, one other issue she didn’t bring up so allow me to, is the 1.2 million per billion guarantee could potentially be a General Fund pressure.  If this body doesn’t put a cap on ever expanding tribal casinos, the ever expanding efforts of card clubs to get around the moratorium efforts of the horse racing industry to expand to stay alive, as they claim, if we don’t put, if this body doesn’t put limits to that, the competition continues to go up for that discretionary dollar.  It’s conceivable that we may drop below a $1.2 billion amount.  And if that’s the case, are we going to have to start supplementing education with General Fund dollars?  I don’t know.  I just throw that out as a concern, when you put a dollar amount guaranteed minimum.  And again, if there is increases in sales, there’s no guarantee that it will go to education.  

And you have a couple of those provisions, as well, the interests and maybe some of the unclaimed prize money.  That used to be guaranteed to go to education.  This bill removes that and puts it at the discretion of the Gambling Control Commission, so I’m sorry, the Lottery Commission.  So again, there’s some efforts there and there’s specific provisions ____.  
Obviously, we support the idea of the million dollars, although that’s pretty small, given the size of the Lottery to go to problem of pathological gambling.  I would say as an attorney, one could make an argument that that may not be consistent with the intent of the Lottery, however.  It could be challenged and separated, which would be—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Should we take it out now?  Is that what you’re advocating for?

MR. JONES:  (LAUGHTER) I’m saying that great provision—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The problem gambling folks want us to take out the problem gambling money.  Okay. 

MR. JONES:  Allow me to just quickly to clarify, if I may.  This bill could pass using this as window dressing, and then it could be taken out by a legal challenge further down the road.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I see, I see, okay, okay.

MR. JONES:  I am concerned about some of the definitional changes in the bill.  For some reason, the word “lottery” is being removed and just the word “game” is being used, so that causes some legal concerns.  I don’t know what the intentions are behind that.  I’m totally confused on the whole fixed game idea, admittedly.  But, there is a provision in there that says both the prize would be fixed and the overall number of these games would be fixed before there’s even the money flowing in, at least my read, and that could cause some class three issues, I think.
I don’t know, maybe the intent was is to know how much revenues, I don’t know.  I’m just concerned about the fixed prizes becoming a house banked game.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, if there are any class three issues, we’ll hear about it real fast, so.  It’ll be by a lot of attorneys.  (LAUGHTER) 

MR. JONES:  And speaking, and much higher priced attorneys than myself.  Giving, speaking of class three, getting rid of some of the theme, thematic provisions, I think, could be another Pandora ’s Box.  And specifically if you’re tying that with also removing some of the prohibitions on modern technology, and then you start getting into coin dispensing machines, so again, that goes back to my concerns about single joining this bill to SB 440.  And then obviously the whole VLT thing’s a big issue.  We can’t afford—I don’t think you can afford to negate those tribal compacts if it implies that these are slot machines, though.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, we did too many hearings on that to do that.  Too much time in this room, so that’s why I asked earlier, the Lottery director, does this impede the business plan.  I think the answer was it wasn’t necessarily included or impedes it, so I think it’s probably something we’ll clarify in an explicit way, so--
MR. JONES:  Right, I heard an answer—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  --we can, you know, put that to sleep.  That’s not a problem.

MR. JONES:  But, thank you ___.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any questions from members?  Yes, Senator Vincent.

SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  You know, I’ve been sitting here all through this hearing, you know, and we’ve used the word, “education” a lot.  And we used the word, “lottery” and “gaming” and all that.  But, you know, this whole thing ____ to me a joke.  And I’m going to tell you why.  My wife taught school for 36 years.  Okay.  I presented a bill to give some districts insurance when they retire from teaching.  She taught 35 years.  Compton.  Watts.  Paramount.  Long Beach.  When she got through working, had not been for me who worked for probation department for 35 years, she would have no insurance.  No insurance whatsoever.  

I’m up here now because my wife is sick.  Now, I’m going to leave as soon as you guys get through talking.  Going back to ____ she’s sick.  If I didn’t have insurance, my wife would probably be dead.  I know a lot of teachers that taught with her are dead, because they didn’t have insurance.  You’ve been on this situation we talk about education.  We talk about gaming.  Somebody told me everything’s a racket.  Some of it’s just legal.  And we look at the situation and I bring the education bill to the Governor, they veto it.  They veto it.  So I bring the situation back.  We talk about, let’s face it.  I graduated with University of Iowa.  Was born near West Virginia.  I was born in Ohio.  The race tracks in those areas: Iowa, West Virginia, as it is here, was going out of business.  And I think what he’s trying to do now is a tremendous, and I salute you for what you’re trying to do.  

Okay.  You do have to take it back to the voters.  You know what’s going to happen?  The voters’ going to vote “no”, because you’re going to have the lobbyists and the people who’ve been influenced to put money in it to make you vote “no”.  For instance, take a look at what the Indians are doing down through the racing industry.  Most people don’t know what it means if Santa Anita closes, if Hollywood Park closes, and DelMar close, what they will, because a lack of purses, lack of field of horses, and a lack of attendance.  

What would then happen most of the public going to say, “What happened to the race tracks?”  ____ tribes.  What do you mean the tribes?  They don’t know what, have any idea what you’re talking about.  I was talking to some teachers last night about that.  Don’t know.  So what I’m saying, education is a very loose word.  Educated to what?  I think people are more for me than they are for we.  And that’s where the problem is.  That’s where the big problem is.  And I’ll tell you something, Mr. Chairman, this goes on the ballot, you’re going to have all kind of people out there lobbying against it.  Big money.  If you try to put a slot machine at Hollywood Park or Hollywood Park casino or you try to put it at Los Alamitos, if you’re trying to put it at Golden Gate, you try to put it at Bay Meadows, the Indians going to spend up to $50-$60 million to stop it.  Because they’ve done it already one time before.  

And again, it’s not me, it should be we, and we don’t do that.  And I think, I just appreciate you taking this time to go through the things you’re going through and hoping we can get something done to help us, instead of me.  Thanks.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Vincent.  Very well put.  Thank you, panel, we appreciate it.  Look forward to working with you as we move this forward, hopefully.

Okay. We have public comment.  We have Bill Stopford, ____ Commerce Systems, and anyone else who would like to make any comments is welcome at this time.  Okay. 

MR. BILL STOPFORD:  Going to be giving handouts to you.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great, thank you.
MR. STOPFORD:  I want to thank the committee and Senator Florez for giving us the opportunity to talk here.  The reason that we’re here is that we recently did a study on internet subscriptions with the Colorado lottery.  All told, there was about 425 pages of data, but we tried to sum it down, because I said I had two minutes to talk here and that would be it, so—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does your technology work with 1984 technology?  I mean, does your technology work with, in terms of, are you past where we’re at now?

MR. STOPFORD:  We’re a little, yeah, we’re a little bit past of it, but to actually to address the situation of the 1984 bill, which the co-owner of Scientific Games which originally instituted it, he’s now professor emeritus at Stanford.  And I talked to him about it and I said, well, what was the situation.   The intention was not because of ___ internet or anything, the intention was that they didn’t want people playing PCs on slots.  It was again, unintended consequences.  I think you’re referring to 880.28.  So, anyways, studies show that the California Lottery and most of the lotteries around the country are missing out on a large segment of the marketplace that consists mainly of those with higher discretionary income, and use the internet to make purchases on a regular basis.  
As I said, we recently completed a pilot with Colorado which demonstrated that subscription play lottery play appeals to and would likely increase lottery participation among those with higher discretionary incomes.  As a matter of fact, we showed originally ____ prototype to Senator Florez about two years ago, and he said, well, where would this market be targeted?  I said, we were looking at the time, the 1.2 million people in California that make over 100,000 a year.  So we’re talking people in the higher, highest income areas.  

Anyways, some of the results are 78 percent of the public is definitely or probably interested in the internet based subscriptions.  Seventy-nine percent of those participants have at least some college education.  In fact, 99 percent had a high school education, at least a high school education.  Forty-seven percent of those participating had household incomes of at least $60,000 which is 15 percent above the median income of 52,000.  California is approximately 56,500 in median income.

Subscription increase play in all lottery games, for example, Cash Five, which Colorado has increased from 13 percent for walk-ins to 46 percents if they could subscribe to it, similar to California’s Daily Three.  Participants said they would spend approximately $46 per month with the internet based subscriptions which is substantially higher than the current of $8 per month, which is similar per capita to California.  They both do about $96 per year.
A real surprise was actually that sales increased to the retail stores and did not decrease.  The reason was the group that we found were called the dabblers with a higher income, in fact, were interested, not only in doing subscriptions because of the convenience, but it also said, you know, during the bigger Mega Millions or Power Ball, whatever, they would, in fact, walk into the stores to play, because we, they were very, they enjoyed it so much.  

With the right approvals, this system could be implemented almost immediately in California and start earning additional dollars for some of the cash strapped schools.  Other states seriously investigating internet subscriptions are, well, when we mentioned, other states are seriously investigating pursuing internet subscription services.  There are four states that currently do it today: Virginia; New York, which is the sixth largest lottery in the world, and twice the size of California; New Hampshire; and North Dakota.  None of them are fully automated.  They are simply parts, bits and pieces of, part automated, part manual, which my colleague, CTO, could certainly go into a little more detail if you wish to hear it.

I’m giving a couple quotes here, and then I’m done.  We’re going to try to maximize sales, quote, we’re going to try to maximize sales and broaden the focus of the Lottery so more people are playing, especially people with discretionary income.  This from Mike Dolan who’s the current director of Ohio Lottery.  Now, according to Professor Thompson who is one of our advisory board members and he’s an authority on gaming behavior and professor of public ____ Nevada, Las Vegas.  He’s testified with many governments.  He’s written ____ books on addictive gambling.  He, I mean, truly is an expert.  Quote, a computer sales mechanism could introduce controls to mitigate inappropriate gaming behaviors by purchasers such as presenting warning messages, messages about amounts of tickets purchased over a period of time, in addition to limiting amount of sales over a period of time and complying to patrons desire to limit amounts of tickets purchased.  Moreover, sales through individual computers would be directed toward demographics less vulnerable to excessive purchases than other sales approaches.  
In fact, we could probably make a very compelling argument that the California State Lottery would have far more control over the players on the internet than they do with people walking in the stores.  As is, person walks in the store as we all know, the clerks do the turnover, it may or not be 18.  They don’t care, because the fact of the matter is, you have to be 18 to win the prize.  Somebody walks in with $10,000 or $20,000 which we’re talking about addiction.  I don’t think the clerks, I’m sorry, we can’t take that money.  Whereas, with the system that we’re talking about, which by the way, the large, every state in the country including the largest states that have all seen exactly what we have right now.  And we can actually control this by age, residency, exactly where the PC is coming from, we can do it by zip code.  This is all technology that’s there.  This is not something that’s new.  It’s something which is very solidly placed.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.  Okay.  Yes, Senator.

SENATOR VINCENT:  What you just said, you said that you ____ where you walk in a place and they says, no we can’t take that money.  It’s kind of a joke.  I’ve walked in places, at the time it was in Ohio where I was born.  Yeah.  And they said, I can’t take that money.  So it happens.  And it happens because it is.  So some places it does happen.

MR. STOPFORD:  I’m sure it does.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, gentlemen.  Appreciate it.

MR. STOPFORD:  You’re very welcome.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any other public comment at this time.  Okay. I’d like to thank everyone for participating.  And I’d like to, before we adjourn, lift the calls to announce the votes...  
# # # # #
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